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In the Circuit Court of the 17th Judicial CircuitIn and for Broward County, FloridaCase No: CACE 04-20081 (14)Popular Leasing U.S.A., Inc., a Delawarecorporation, Plaintiff,vs.Yizhac Arvilli, doing business as Ike’sElectronics, a Florida sole proprietorship,and Yizhac Arvilli, individually,Defendants./Answer, Affirmative Defenses, and CounterclaimDefendant, Yizhac Arvilli, doing business as Ike’s Electronics, a Florida soleproprietorship, and Yizhac Arvilli, individually, by and through their undersigned attorneys,answers the complaint filed by Popular Leasing U.S.A., Inc., a Delaware corportion,(“Popular”) and states:1. Without knowledge, and therefore, denied. 2. Without knowledge, and therefore, denied.3. Admitted. 4. Plaintiff’s belief is unknown to Defendants, but Defendants admit that Yizhac Arvilliis a resident of, and domiciled in, Broward County, Florida. 5. Admitted.6. Defendants admit that they entered into a contract with NorVergence, Inc., a New Jersey



See Mnemonics, Inc. v. Max Davis Assoc., Inc. 808 So.2d 1278, 1280 (Fla. 5th DCA 2002):1
When an agreement between the parties consists of several instruments executedby them at or near the same time and concern the same transaction or subjectmatter, they are generally construed together as a single contract.   See QuixSnaxx, Inc. v. Sorensen, 710 So.2d 152, 154 (Fla. 3d DCA 1998). ...See Birwelco-Montenay, Inc., v. Infilco Degremont, Inc., 827 So.2d 255 (Fla. 3d DCA22002): We note that BMC Indus., Inc. v. Barth Indus., Inc., 160 F.3d 1322, 1331 (11thCir.1998), cert. denied, 526 U.S. 1132, 119 S.Ct. 1807, 143 L.Ed.2d 1010 (1999), onwhich the parties rely as dispositive of this matter, states that “[t]he question whethera contract is predominantly for goods or services is generally one of fact.”BMC Indus., Inc. v. Barth Indus., Inc., 160 F.3d 1322, 1331 (11th Cir.1998), cert. denied, 526 U.S.1132, 119 S.Ct. 1807, 143 L.Ed.2d 1010 (1999) likewise states that contracts whose predominantfeature is the delivery of services are not covered by the UCC.2
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corporation, (“NorVergence”) on or about April 27, 2004, but deny the balance of theallegation.  Defendants affirmatively aver that the contract entered into between themand NorVergence is attached hereto as Defendant’s Exhibit 1, and by reference is madea part hereof .  The “predominant feature “ of the contract between them and1 2
NorVergence was for the delivery of telephone services (to-wit: local and unlimitedlong-distance by land-line phones, and unlimited nationwide calling by cellular phoneswithout roaming charges), incidental to which NorVergence was to install an integratedaccess device, a common piece of telephone networking equipment, whose purpose isto apportion bandwidth of a tier one (T1) telephone line between voice signals and datasignals.  The NorVergence contract was able to be canceled by Defendants shouldNorVergence fail to provide those telephone services (see Defendant’s Exhibit 1.)Further, by virtue of a business presentation made by NorVergence to Popular prior to



Popular’s attorney in the Bankruptcy, Peter Deeb, served as attorney for a3steering committee of leasing company partners, including Popular. Popular learned thatNorVergence owed millions of dollars to telephone service providers, including Qwest, and thatthe providers, including Qwest, were threatening to stop providing telephone service to NorVergenceand its customers. On June 30, 2004, Mr. Deeb had a telephone conversation with Andrew H. Sherman of thelaw firm of Sills Cummis Epstein & Gross, P.C., who represented Qwest, concerning money owedby NorVergence to Qwest. It is clear from the content of the conversation that Mr. Deeb, as attorneyfor Popular, knew that if telephone services were not provided to NorVergence’s customers, nopayments would be collected on the assigned contracts. Mr. Sherman filed an affidavit in the NorVergence bankruptcy matter which stated: 8. Mr. Deeb introduced himself as counsel to a “steering committee” of lessors whohad an interest in a stream of income between $200 million and $250 million. 9. Mr. Deeb indicated that he was aware of the $7.5 million payment which was duefrom the Debtor [NorVergence] on June 30, 2004, and advised me that he wanted toprevent Qwest from terminating the Agreement. 10. Mr. Deeb said, in sum and substance, that if Qwest terminated the Agreement hisclients would lose their rights to a stream of income of between $200 million and$250 million. He then advised me that he would file an involuntary bankruptcypetition to protect that income stream. He further stated that by operation of theautomatic stay and Section 366 of the Bankruptcy Code, Qwest would be forced to3
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Popular agreeing to become a “leasing partner” of NorVergence, which presentationincluded a PowerPoint presentation (a copy of which is attached hereto as Defendant’sExhibit 2, and by reference, made a part hereof), Popular was fully aware that thepredominant feature of all contracts to be entered into by NorVergence was the deliveryof the above described telephone services, and that the contracts were able to becanceled (see reference in PowerPoint to Service Level Agreement posted on the website of NorVergence, at Defendant’s Exhibit 2, p. 17).  Popular knew before this suitwas filed that the subject contract was canceled due to the involuntary bankruptcypetition filed by Plaintiff against NorVergence .  A true and correct copy of the3



continue to provide service to Norvergence to protect the stream of income which heclaimed was due to his clients. Through these statements, it was apparent that thelenders and lessors were trying to force Qwest to provide services to protect theirinterests. A true and correct copy of the affidavit is attached hereto as Defendant’s Exhibit 4, and byreference, is made a part hereof. 4
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involuntary bankruptcy petition is attached hereto as Defendant’s Exhibit 3, and byreference is made a part hereof.  The telephone services nature of the contract wasconfirmed to Popular during the pendency of this suit (on February 18, 2005) by thedeposition of Steven Liebrock, a former technological employee of NorVergence, whotestified in the presence of Mr. Deeb, and two attorneys from two offices of Plaintiff’slawyers in the present case, Akerman Senterfitt:Q. What was NorVergence selling customers?A. Services.Q. And what were those services?A. Voice calling and internet access.7. Defendants admit that they entered into a contract with NorVergence, Inc., a New Jerseycorporation, (“NorVergence”) on or about April 27, 2004, but deny the balance of theallegation.  Further, Defendants incorporate herein the affirmative averments containedin their answer to ¶ 6 above.8. Defendants admit that they entered into a contract with NorVergence, Inc., a New Jerseycorporation, (“NorVergence”) on or about April 27, 2004, but deny the balance of theallegation.  Further, Defendants incorporate herein the affirmative averments containedin their answer to ¶ 6 above.9. Defendants admit that they entered into a contract with NorVergence, Inc., a New Jersey
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corporation, (“NorVergence”) on or about April 27, 2004, but deny the balance of theallegation.  Further, Defendants incorporate herein the affirmative averments containedin their answer to ¶ 6 above.10. Without knowledge, and therefore, denied. 11. Defendants are without knowledge of any assignment, and therefore, deny theallegation.  Further, Defendants incorporate herein the affirmative averments containedin their answer to ¶ 6 above.12. Denied, further, Defendants incorporate herein the affirmative averments contained intheir answer to ¶ 6 above.13. Denied.14. Defendants incorporate by reference all previous answers and affirmative averments.15. Denied.16. Denied.17. Defendants incorporate by reference all previous answers and affirmative averments.18. Denied.19. Admitted.20. Denied.21. Defendants deny all allegations not previously addressed.
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Allegations of Facts Common to Affirmative Defenses,Counterclaim, and Third Party ClaimPartiesDefendant Yizhac Arvilli1. Defendant Yizhac Arvilli is a resident of and domiciled in Broward County, Florida, and issui juris.NorVergence
2. At all times material hereto, non-party NorVergence, Inc., (“NorVergence”) was acorporation, organized and existing pursuant to the laws of the State of New Jersey. It wasincorporated September 10, 2001, and maintained a place of business at 550 Broad St,Newark, NJ, until an involuntary petition under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code was filedagainst it in the District of New Jersey by Popular and two other similarly situated leasingcompany partners of NorVergence. Until such time, it was capable of suing and being sued.3. The Chapter 11 proceeding has been voluntarily converted to a Chapter 7 proceeding whenit became apparent that NorVergence could not make sufficient post-petition contractpayments to telephone service providers such as Qwest Communications Corporation(“Qwest”), Sprint  Communications Company, L.P., (“Sprint”) and T-Mobile USA, Inc., (“T-Mobile”), for telephone services which NorVergence resold to Yizhac Arvilli and othersimilarly situated companies.  The automatic stay is still in effect in said case.Popular Leasing USA, Inc. 
4. Popular is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, andis authorized to sue and be sued in the State of Florida.
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Employees or Agents of NorVergence
5. Non-party Donald May (“May”) is a resident of and domiciled in Broward County, Florida,and is sui juris.6. At all times material hereto, May was an employee or agent of NorVergence.7. Non-party Matthew Krac (“Krac”) is a resident of and domiciled in Broward County, Florida,and is sui juris.8. At all times material hereto, Krac was an employee or agent of NorVergence.Jurisdiction and Venue
9. This court has subject matter jurisdiction over the counterclaim contained hereinafter byvirtue of the allegations of the complaint.10. Venue is properly placed in Broward County, Florida, because the contract sued upon wasentered into, and was to be performed, in Broward County, Florida.  Additionally, DefendantYizhac Arvilli, is domiciled in Broward County, Florida.The Fraudulent Scheme of NorVergence Begins:NorVergence Enters Into Telephone Services Contract withQwest, Verizon, Sprint, T-Mobile, and OthersQwest Contract
11. On November 20, 2001, NorVergence entered into a Wholesale Service Agreement withQwest whereby Qwest would sell to NorVergence, and NorVergence would buy from Qwest,Telecommunications Services as described in the contract, solely for resale by NorVergenceto non-residential customers.  For such telecommunication services, NorVergence was to payQwest the applicable tariffs for which Qwest was required by the Act to provide a wholesale
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discount to NorVergence.  (See § 251(c)(4) of the Act.) 12. On August 28, 2003, NorVergence entered into a substitute Wholesale Service Agreementwhereby Qwest would sell to NorVergence, and NorVergence would buy from Qwest,Telecommunications Services as described in the contract, solely for resale by NorVergenceto non-residential customers.  For such telecommunication services, NorVergence was to payQwest the applicable tariffs for which Qwest was required by the Act to provide a wholesalediscount to NorVergence.  (See § 251(c)(4) of the Act.) Verizon Contract
13. On December 30, 2002, NorVergence entered into a contract with Verizon New EnglandInc., d/b/a Verizon Maine (“Verizon”), whereby Verizon would sell to NorVergence, andNorVergence would buy from Verizon, Verizon Telecommunications Services as describedin the contract, solely for resale by NorVergence to non-residential customers.  For suchtelecommunication services, NorVergence was to pay Verizon the applicable tariffs forwhich Verizon was required by the Communications Act of 1934 (47 U.S.C. § 151, et seq.)as from time to time amended, including but not limited to, by the Telecommunications Actof 1996, (the “Act”) to provide a wholesale discount to NorVergence.  (See § 251(c)(4) ofthe Act.)14. The wholesale discount for resale of Verizon Telecommunications Services contained in saidcontract was either 23.76% or 25.74% depending upon whether NorVergence provided itsown operator services platform.15. Said contract was available to the public in general, and Plaintiff in particular, through theinternet prior to September 10, 2003.16. A review of said contract, and the web site of NorVergence, reveals that NorVergence was
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a reseller of wholesale telecommunications services similar to other telephone serviceproviders, such as XO Communications, Inc., but with cellular services added thereto.Sprint Contract
17. In April, 2003, NorVergence entered into a contract with Sprint Communications Company,L.P., (“Sprint”), entitled “Sprint Advantage Agreement for Business,” whereby Sprint wouldsell to NorVergence, and NorVergence would buy from Sprint, Personal CommunicationServices (“PCS”) and PCS handset devices and accessories, as described in the contract,solely for resale by NorVergence to non-residential customers.  For such telecommunicationservices, NorVergence was to pay Sprint the applicable tariffs for which Sprint was requiredby the Act to provide a wholesale discount to NorVergence.  (See § 251(c)(4) of the Act.)18. Upon information and belief, Defendants assert that NorVergence entered into similarcontracts with T-Mobile USA, Inc., (“T-Mobile”) and AT&T, prior to September 10, 2003.NorVergence Gains Authority to do Business in VariousStates and Licenses as Telecommunication Service Providerby Various States–All Public RecordsAuthority to do Business19. On or about December 5, 2002, NorVergence obtained a Certificate of Authority from thePennsylvania Department of State to conduct business within the Commonwealth ofPennsylvania as a foreign business corporation and in so doing, notified the Commonwealththat its primary business purpose was to offer telecommunication services.20. The documents related to the above filing with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania were andare public records, available to Plaintiff at all times.21. On or about December 9, 2002, NorVergence filed an Application for a Foreign Corporation
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to Transact Business in Florida, and other documents, thereby obtaining authority to conductbusiness within the State of Florida as a foreign business corporation and in so doing,notified the State of Florida that its primary business purpose was to offer telecommunicationservices.22. The documents related to the above filing with the State of Florida were and are publicrecords, available to Plaintiff at all times.Licenses as Telecommunication Service Provider–New Jersey
23. On April 15, 2003, NorVergence filed a Petition with the New Jersey Board of PublicUtilities (“Board”) requesting authority to provide competitive facilities-based localexchange and interexchange telecommunications services in the State of New Jersey.  Aportion of the Order of the State of New Jersey Board of Public Utilities, approving theapplication, states:In its Petition, the Company [NorVergence] seeks authority to provide competitivefacilities-based local exchange and interexchange telecommunications services tocommercial subscribers. According to the Petitioner, NorVergence initially plans tooffer services to small and medium business customers located in the Verizon – NewJersey territory within New Jersey. Petitioner states that its facilities will consist ofUnbundled Network Elements leased or purchased from a facilities-based New Jerseycertificated provider. Petitioner further states that it initially expects to utilize theUnbundled Network Element Platform and as economic and regulatory conditionspermit or require, it anticipates migrating customers to Unbundled Network ElementsLoops. NorVergence expects to offer local services, both as a stand-alone productand as part of a bundle, with resold long distance, internet access and othertelecommunications services. According to the Petitioner, all complaints andcustomer service issues will be referred to the NorVergence's Customer ServiceDepartment and its customer service representatives are available Monday-Friday8:30 AM – 5:30 PM. Petitioner has also provided a toll-free number for its customerservice office. 24. The documents related to the above filing with the State of New Jersey were and are publicrecords, available to Plaintiff at all times.
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Pennsylvania
25. On April 16, 2003, NorVergence filed an Application for Approval to Offer, Render, Furnishor Supply Resale/Facilities-Based Interexchange Telecommunications Services to the Publicin the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (hereinafter the “Application for Approval”) with theSecretary of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (hereinafter the “Commission”). The Commission gave NorVergence provisional approval to provide telecommunicationservices to the public in Pennsylvania; however, the Commission has since denied theNorVergence Application for Approval.26. The documents related to the above filing with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania were andare public records, available to Plaintiff at all times.California
27. On May 9, 2003, NorVergence filed with the State of California, Public UtilitiesCommission, a application seeking registration and authorization to provide inter- and intra-local access and transport area services in California as a non-dominant interexchangecarrier.  Said application was accepted and approved by the State of California on September4, 2003, effective as of September 4, 2003.28. The documents related to the above filing with the State of California were and are publicrecords, available to Plaintiff at all times.Florida
29. On September 25, 2003, NorVergence filed with the State of Florida, Public ServiceCommission, a “tariff” (as defined in § 364.02, FLA. STAT. (2003)) seeking registration andauthorization as an Intrastate Interexchange Telecommunications Company.  Said application
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was accepted and approved by the State of Florida on December 3, 2003, effective as ofSeptember 25, 2003.  The tariff establishes the rates at which NorVergence proposes to reselltelephone calls on a per minute basis, and establishes monthly recurring charges fortelephone service.30. The documents related to the above filing with the State of Florida were and are publicrecords, available to Plaintiff at all times.31. Pursuant to the enabling legislation embodied in Chapter 364, FLA. STAT. (2003), the FloridaPublic Service Commission enacted regulations governing telephone companies such asNorVergence, providing telephone and telecommunication services within the State ofFlorida, which regulations are codified in Chapter 25-4, FLA. ADMIN. CODE (2003).32. Yizhac Arvilli has information and belief, and therefore alleges, that NorVergence filedsimilar applications for approval with other states, in all instances advising public utilityauthorities that its business was to provide telecommunication services to the public.33. The documents related to the above filings with all states were and are public records,available to Plaintiff at all times.34. On December 12, 2003, the State of Florida, Public Service Commission, mailed aRegulatory Assessment Fee for 2003, to NorVergence.  NorVergence failed and refused topay said fee to the State of Florida.  Failing to pay said fee can result in the authority givento NorVergence to operate as an Intrastate Interexchange Telecommunications Company inthe State of Florida to be rescinded or canceled.35. At no time did the States of Florida, California or New Jersey, or the Commonwealth ofPennsylvania, require any business to obtain authority from the applicable public utilityregulatory body therein to simply sell or lease integrated access devices for profit.



Adtran describes the integrated access device sold to NorVergence as:4
Part of ADTRAN's Total Access System, The Total Access 850 is modularcarrier-class Integrated Access Device (IAD). The Total Access 850 offers a widevariety of features and interface options for T1 TDM and packet networks such as T1ATM and DSL. Scalable and economical, this IAD allows users to select from a widevariety of voice and data options for flexibility and ease of configuration. Thisplatform offers an integral router, V.35, and DSX-1 interface port, and it can supportup to 24 analog FXS ports by utilizing the six access module slots. With the TotalAccess 850 users can easily migrate from TDM to packet circuits, as networkrequirements change. An optional 8-hour battery backup system is available toprotect uptime in case of a power outage. Additionally, all Total Access IADsprovide an industry-leading 10 year warranty. 
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NorVergence Contracts to Buy Integrated Access Devicesfrom Adtran36. On February 1, 2003, NorVergence entered into a contract, entitled an OEM SalesAgreement, with Adtran, Inc., (“Adtran”) the manufacturer of certain telephone equipmentnecessary to provide voice and data communication over a T1 telephone line, whichequipment in the telephone service industry is known as an integrated access device .4
37. Said OEM Sales Agreement provided, in pertinent part:3.  Product * * *(c) NorVergence is authorized sell the Product(s) only as part of a bundled serviceoffering to its customers, and not as a stand-alone product offering. Any suchstand-alone sale of Product by NorVergence shall be a material breach of thisAgreement.38. On November 14, 2003, NorVergence and Adtran entered into Amendment Number 1 to theOEM Sales Agreement, with prices quoted as of October 31, 2003.39. It appears to Yizhac Arvilli, and therefore, on knowledge, information and belief, Yizhac



The term “leasing company partner” was used by NorVergence in describing each leasing5company NorVergence brought into its scheme.   In return, Popular described itself as a businesspartner of NorVergence. 14
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Arvilli alleges that the purchase price to NorVergence from Adtran of the OEM IntegratedAccess Device product was less than $1,550 each.40. The NorVergence / Adtran contract was in writing, and available to Plaintiff during any andall phases of either due diligence or risk management processes.Plaintiff Becomes Partner with NorVergence In FraudulentScheme41. Prior to March 11, 2003, representatives from NorVergence met with representatives ofPopular to discuss the proposal of NorVergence that Popular become a “leasing companypartner”  of NorVergence in the distribution of “hardware ... that enables companies to5
drastically reduce telephone expenses by consolidating voice and data T1 lines into onecombined line.”42. Said proposal included a disclosure that the hardware was manufactured by Adtran, and thata “residual value study” (a term of art in the equipment leasing business) needed to becompleted. 43. At said meeting, NorVergence made a PowerPoint presentation to Popular, a copy of whichis attached hereto as Defendant’s Exhibit 2, and by reference, is made a part hereof.44. The PowerPoint presentation advised Popular that:a. NorVergence was proposing to prospective customers that NorVergence providetelephone services to those customers through a T1 telephone line, whose signalwould be apportioned by an integrated access device (IAD), manufactured for
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NorVergence under a private label agreement by Adtran, Inc., which IAD would becalled a “MATRIX™ Hardware” device;b. That customers would be attracted to NorVergence’s proposal because it would resultin a flat monthly charge for all telephone services, fixed for 5 years;c. There would be “two major forms of revenue” for NorVergence, the selling oftelephone services, and “selling MATRIX™ units,” with “other revenue streams”being, among others, cellular services;d. The Service Level Agreement (“SLA”) for Customers was available for review atNorVergence’s web site (which SLA provided that the contract betweenNorVergence and its customers could be canceled if NorVergence failed to delivertelephone services);e. At the same web site, and linked to the same page, was NorVergence’s “GeneralTerms and Conditions;”f. The General Terms and Conditions provides, among other things:11. This Agreement supersedes all previous and contemporaneous written andoral representations, understandings or agreements related to the subject matterherein and shall prevail notwithstanding any variance with terms and conditionsof any order submitted. Acceptance of this Agreement by NorVergence may besubject, in NorVergence's absolute discretion, to satisfactory completion of acredit check and hardware and facilities Engineering Review. Activation ofservice shall indicate both customer's and NorVergence's acceptance of thisAgreement. Use of the NorVergence Network constitutes acceptance of thisAgreement and all related agreements. 45. On March 8, 2003, in performing due diligence, Popular examined the web site ofNorVergence.46. During said examination, Popular found a page on the web site entitled “CustomerDocuments.”



Paragraph 7 of the SLA provides:6
7. The Service Level Agreement (“SLA”) for this service, which is made a partof this Agreement, is set forth at www.NorVergence.com and applies to allcustomers. NorVergence reserves the right to amend the SLA from time to timeeffective upon posting of the revised SLA to the URL or other notice toCustomer, provided, that in the event of any amendment resulting in a materialreduction of the SLA’s service levels or credits, Customer may terminate thisAgreement without penalty by providing NorVergence written notice oftermination during the 30 days following notice of such amendment. The SLAsets forth Customer’s sole remedies for any claim relating to this service or theNorVergence Network, including any failure to meet any guarantee set forth inthe SLA. NorVergence’s records and data shall be the basis for all SLAcalculations and determinations. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, themaximum amount of credit in any calendar month under the SLA shall notexceed the Monthly Service Fee which, absent the credit, would have beencharged for NorVergence service that month (collectively the “NorVergenceFees”); provided, that the maximum amount of credit for failure to meet theAvailability Guarantee shall not exceed the sum of (a) the NorVergence Fees,plus (b) the telephone company line charge which, absent the credit, would havebeen charged for such month. 16
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47. Popular followed the link from the web page entitled “Customer Documents” to severaldocuments, among them “Equipment Warranty,” “General Terms and Conditions,” and“Service Level Agreement.”48. On March 8, 2003, by reviewing the above identified web pages, Popular learned:a. That the General Terms and Conditions contained a super-superiority clause (¶ 11cited above) which provided that all of the terms and conditions of the “GeneralTerms and Conditions” took precedence over any other provision in any agreementbetween NorVergence and its customer;b. That the Service Level Agreement was made a part of the “General Terms andConditions” by virtue of the specific incorporation thereof found at ¶ 7 of the GeneralTerms and Conditions, and “applies to all customers ;”6



As we shall see, this is why Popular agreed to loan $400,000 (out of a total of over7$2,000,000 to be loaned by leasing company partners of NorVergence) to NorVergence at a timewhen NorVergence was not financially viable, in an effort to avoid telephone service cut-off and theloss of what its attorney, Peter Deeb, described as an income stream of between $200 and $250million dollars (collectively for all leasing partners).17
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c. That the Service Level Agreement permitted each NorVergence customer toterminate the contract with NorVergence should NorVergence fail to providetelephone service to the customer .7
49. The above pages from NorVergence’s web site were significant enough to Popular to causePopular to print them and keep them with all other documents gathered during its duediligence review of NorVergence.Contracts Intended to be Acquired by Plaintiff as Partner ofNorVergence50. On May 16, 2003, NorVergence entered into the vendor lease program partnership withPopular. 51. Attached hereto as Defendant’s Exhibit 5, and made a part hereof by reference, is a true andcorrect copy of a the contract referred to above, which contract is entitled “Master ProgramAgreement.”52. The Master Program Agreement defines the Contract Documentation assigned to Popular,in Exhibit A thereto, as including “all documentation related to such Rental Agreement ....”53. The documents attached hereto as Defendant’s Exhibit 1, alleged by Yizhac Arvilli toconstitute the contract between Yizhac Arvilli and NorVergence (the “NorVergence / ArvilliContract”) certainly constitute part or all of the “documentation related to such Rental
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Agreement.”54. The Master Program Agreement was prepared, and entered into by Popular, agreeing that“Contract Documentation” included “all documentation related to such Rental Agreement...” at a time when Popular knew that the General Terms and Conditions and Service LevelAgreement described above related to “all contracts” between NorVergence and itscustomers, and “all contracts” would include the Equipment Rental Agreement betweenNorVergence and Yizhac Arvilli.Fraudulent Scheme Brought to Yizhac Arvilli
55. Prior to April 27, 2004, NorVergence contacted Yizhac Arvilli by telephone, requesting ameeting to discuss how Yizhac Arvilli could save money on his business phone bills.  Thetelephone contact was confirmed by letter dated the same date.56. The confirmation letter is replete with representations about saving money on telephone bills.57. At all times material hereto, NorVergence held itself out to the public in general and YizhacArvilli in particular as a provider of “low-cost” telecommunication services to small andmedium size businesses throughout the United States. 58. NorVergence represented to Yizhac Arvilli that it offered deeply discountedtelecommunication services to selective business customers, including Yizhac Arvilli. 59. On April 27, 2004, Donald May and Matthew Krac appeared for the preset appointment, andpresented Yizhac Arvilli’s owners with business cards which contained the business logosof NorVergence, Qwest and Nortel.  60. Donald May and Matthew Krac requested that Yizhac Arvilli provide them with copies ofthe telephone bills for Yizhac Arvilli, including personal cellular phone bills, for the last
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three months, so that the bills could be analyzed to see if NorVergence could save YizhacArvilli money on telephone costs.61. Krac stated that NorVergence would pay all cancellation charges for both cellular and land-line accounts, would replace all cellular hand sets annually with hand sets comparable tothose presently in use by Yizhac Arvilli, and would provide the first two months of telephoneservice free of charge.62. Yizhac Arvilli complied with the request of May and Krac.63. On April 27, 2004, May and Krac presented Yizhac Arvilli with a written proposal showinga savings on telephone service.64. Yizhac Arvilli accepted NorVergence’s offer to reduce Yizhac Arvilli’s telephone costs, andKrac presented Yizhac Arvilli with many forms to sign.65. Krac made clear to Yizhac Arvilli that he was unable to negotiate the terms of any of thedocuments, and they were being presented on a take-it-or-leave-it basis.66. Yizhac Arvilli then signed the documents and delivered them to Krac as agent forNorVergence.67. The documents so signed are attached as the Contract (Defendant’s Exhibit 1), and byreference, are made a part hereof.68. On or about May 3, 2004, Yizhac Arvilli received confirmation from NorVergence sent bywire and by the mail, that NorVergence received Yizhac Arvilli’s application, and repeatedin said letter that NorVergence would “drastically cut telecommunication costs.”69. NorVergence, through its advertising, marketing and form letters sent to each prospectivecustomer, including Yizhac Arvilli, engaged in high pressure, misleading, and deceptivesales tactics. 



20
GOSSETT & GOSSETT, P.A. 4700 Sheridan Street, Building I, Hollywood, Florida 33021 • (954) 983-2828  • Fax (954) 983-2850

70. NorVergence represented that only the most qualified applicants would be accepted asNorVergence customers because of the extremely high demand for the NorVergence system.71. NorVergence refused to negotiate any of the terms of  any of the documents, including theNorVergence telecommunication services agreement, offering them only on a take-it-or-leave-it basis.72. NorVergence represented that it was able to offer such deeply discounted telecommunicationservices because of the engineering technology associated with the MATRIX™ Hardwaredevices. 73. NorVergence represented that the engineering “advances” associated with the MATRIX™Hardware devices allowed for “free unlimited calling circuitry” and the “voice as fast asdata” solution, which permitted the elimination of per-minute telecommunication charges.74. Norvergence made material misrepresentations to its small business customers, includingYizhac Arvilli, about the MATRIX™ Solutions, including that the MATRIX™ Solutionsprovided a 30% - 60% savings on free unlimited local and long distance calls, high speedinternet service and unlimited cell phone service. 75. Moreover, Norvergence misrepresented that the MATRIX™ Hardware provided to its smallbusiness customers, including Yizhac Arvilli, contained proprietary software and hardwareof patents-pending designs.76. The foregoing representations were made by NorVergence to Yizhac Arvilli through Mayand Krac, who held themselves out to be officers, employees and agents of NorVergence.77. None of the foregoing representations were true when made, all were known byNorVergence, May and Krac, to be false when they were made, and were made for thespecific purpose of inducing NorVergence’s prospective customers, including Yizhac Arvilli,
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to rely thereon to their detriment.78. Yizhac Arvilli relied upon the false representations to its detriment.79. Despite Norvergence’s representations to its small business customers, including YizhacArvilli, regarding the MATRIX™ Hardware, it is not proprietary to Norvergence but is infact an Adtran 850 that functions to allocate up to 24 access channels for a T-l line.80. Norvergence further misrepresented to its small business customers, including YizhacArvilli, that the MATRIX™ Hardware provided Voice Over Internet Protocol (“VoIP”) thatallows analog voice on phone lines to be converted to digital information which is thentransmitted over the internet presumably at a savings from regular analog voice transmittedover phone lines because no long distance tolls are imposed, and no state and federaltelecommunication taxes are imposed.  81. Not only did the MATRIX™ Hardware not provide VoIP at a savings, it did not provideVoIP at all.82. Yizhac Arvilli is informed, believes and therefore alleges, that NorVergence directed, orotherwise approved its sales staff, including May and Krac, in the course of salespresentations, to represent, directly or by implication, orally or in written and printedmaterials, that:a. NorVergence would provide Yizhac Arvilli with unlimited long distance, cellularphone and high speed Internet access at greatly reduced prices.b. Yizhac Arvilli would continue to receive the services for which they contractedregardless of whether anything would ever happen to NorVergence.c. NorVergence was a business partner with Nortel Networks and QwestCommunications, companies who were recognized as leaders in the



22
GOSSETT & GOSSETT, P.A. 4700 Sheridan Street, Building I, Hollywood, Florida 33021 • (954) 983-2828  • Fax (954) 983-2850

telecommunication industry.d. In order to obtain the NorVergence telecommunication package, it was necessary forthe consumer to sign many documents, including an “Equipment Rental Agreement”(hereinafter the “ERA”) as well as a “MATRIX™ T1 Non-Binding ServiceApplication,” and “MATRIX™ T1 Non-Binding Hardware Application.”83. Yizhac Arvilli is informed, believes and therefore alleges, that NorVergence directed its salesstaff, including May and Krac, in the course of the sales and approval process, to obtainconsumers’ signatures, including Yizhac Arvilli’s, on numerous forms including, but notlimited to:  A “Customer Qualifying Questionnaire,” an “Accurate Bill Receipt and ProposalRequest,” a “Receipt of Savings Guarantee Subject to Mutual Due Diligence & Acceptanceby Engineering,” a “Credit Application,” a “Letter of Agency,” a “No-Risk ReservationAgreement,” an “Equipment Rental Agreement,” and a “Service Application” all of whichwas purported to be non-binding until accepted by NorVergence.84. Consumers including Yizhac Arvilli were led to believe that unless said forms werecompleted and executed, they could not be considered for the NorVergencetelecommunication package offer.  85. In the process of securing said forms from consumers, NorVergence’s sales staff routinelyobtained copies of the consumer’s recent telecommunication bills including bills for land-line and cellular telephone service and Internet access.86. May and Krac, on behalf of NorVergence, obtained said documents from Yizhac Arvilli. 87. Yizhac Arvilli is informed, believes and therefore alleges, that NorVergence directed, orotherwise approved, its sales staff, including May and Krac, to notify the consumers who hadapplied for the telecommunications package, including Yizhac Arvilli,  that they had
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qualified for the offer and would be able to realize a savings on their phone bills ofapproximately 30%.  88. In addition to the aforementioned misrepresentations, NorVergence inconsistently used theterm “MATRIX™” throughout the documents presented to consumers, including YizhacArvilli, to describe, at various times, MATRIX™ Hardware, MATRIX™ Services, andMATRIX™ Solutions, in a concerted effort to create confusion on behalf of the consumers,including Yizhac Arvilli.89. The ERA, which Plaintiff seeks to enforce separately from the other parts of theNorVergence / Arvilli Contract, is written simply for “MATRIX™,” leading Yizhac Arvillito believe and understand that the term “MATRIX™” as so used, referred to the combinationof MATRIX™ Hardware and MATRIX™ Services. 90. The definition of MATRIX™ is found in the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract(Defendant’s Exhibit 1) at page 2 as:Merged Access Transport Intelligent Exchange (“MATRIX”) Hardware or Services(The “Solutions”)Thus, “MATRIX™ Hardware” would mean the integrated access device; “MATRIX™Services” would mean the telephone services to be provided by NorVergence toDefendant, and “MATRIX™” alone would be the combination of the two.Installation of MATRIX™ Hardware
91. On or about May 27, 2004, NorVergence caused a MATRIX™ Hardware device and anRJ21 jack to be attached to a wall in Yizhac Arvilli’s offices.92. The installer presented Yizhac Arvilli with a document, requesting that Yizhac Arvilli signthe document so that the installer could be paid by NorVergence for the installation.
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93. The document was entitled “Delivery and Acceptance Certificate.”94. The document contained a representation that Yizhac Arvilli had a reasonable opportunityto inspect the MATRIX™ Hardware and that the MATRIX™ Hardware conforms to therequirements of Yizhac Arvilli.95. Because these statements were not true, Yizhac Arvilli hesitated to sign the document;however, the installer insisted that unless it was signed, the installer would not be paid forhis services.96. Knowing that the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract was subject to cancellation by YizhacArvilli, without penalty, should NorVergence fail to provide the services required by thecontract, Yizhac Arvilli signed the delivery and acceptance certificate.Plaintiff’s Knowledge of Services as “Predominant Feature”of NorVergence / Arvilli Contract Before Purchase97. At all times material hereto, Plaintiff knew, or with the exercise of reasonable care shouldhave known, that the predominant feature of the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract was thedelivery of telephone services.NorVergence / Arvilli Contract
98. The predominant feature of the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract was the supply byNorVergence of telephone services, both through a T1 land-line and cellular phones.99. Telephone “services” are mentioned over 100 times in the many pages of the NorVergence/ Arvilli Contract.100. Providing MATRIX™ Hardware is only incidental to providing telephone services.101. Accordingly, the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract is not a “Lease” as defined in the Uniform
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Commercial Code, and does not fall within the ambit of the UCC.  BMC Industries, Inc., v.Barth Industries, Inc., 160 F.3d 1322 (11  Cir. 1998) and Quality Guaranteed Roofing, Inc.,th
v. Hoffman-LaRoche, Inc., 302 N.J.Super. 163, 694 A.2d 1077, 32 UCC Rep.Serv.2d 1072(1997). 102. At the time that NorVergence and Yizhac Arvilli entered into the Contract, there was nocompany offering a competing product similar to that offered by NorVergence.103. At the time that NorVergence and Yizhac Arvilli entered into the Contract, Yizhac Arvillidid not have equal or comparable bargaining power with NorVergence.104. NorVergence prepared all of the documents submitted to Yizhac Arvilli on a take-it-or-leave-it basis, with at least some of said documents reviewed and approved by Popular prior tothem being submitted to Defendant. NorVergence / Arvilli Contract Subject to Cancellation

105. The NorVergence / Arvilli Contract was subject to cancellation without any financialpenalty:CUSTOMER TERMINATION RIGHTS. Customer may terminate the AffectedServices  without penalty if, in any single calendar month: (i) Network Downtime8exists for at least ninety-six (96) hours in the aggregate; or (ii) any single evententitling Customer to credits under Network Availability exists for a period of at leastthirty-six (36) consecutive hours. Such termination must be conducted by writtennotice to the NorVergence, with a courtesy copy to the attention of the NorvergenceChief Managing Officer, sent by certified US Mail return receipt requested withinfive (5) business days following the end of the relevant calendar month. Suchtermination will be effective forty -five (45) days after receipt of written notice by
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Norvergence. The provisions of this SLA state Customer's sole and exclusiveremedies for Service interruptions or Service deficiencies of any kind whatsoever. Defendant’s Exhibit 1, p. 6.106. When Popular and other leasing company partners filed an involuntary Chapter 11proceeding against NorVergence, Popular knew that NorVergence would stop providingtelephone services under the Contract.107. With the filing of the Chapter 11 proceeding, and with the conversion to Chapter 7,NorVergence stopped  providing telephone services to Yizhac Arvilli.9
108. At the time NorVergence stopped providing telephone services to Yizhac Arvilli, he was nolonger obligated to provide contractual notice to NorVergence that he was cancelling theContract because NorVergence had, by its action, cancelled it. Popular Knew that the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract wasAble to be Canceled, and Anticipated that Yizhac Arvilliwould Cancel the Contract109. Prior to filing suit, Popular knew that the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract was subject tocancellation if NorVergence failed to provide telephone services, as is evidenced by:a. Popular and other leasing company partners formed a Lessor Steering Committee byJune 25, 2004, chaired by Donald P. Campbell, the Chairman and Chief ExecutiveOfficer of Partners Equity Capital Company, LLC;b. The primary concern of the Lessor Steering Committee was the continuation oftelephone service being supplied by NorVergence to its customers;
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c. The Lessor Steering Committee attempted to raise millions of dollars of loans andinvestment capital to keep NorVergence in the business of providing telephoneservices to its customers;d. Popular agreed to invest $400,000 in the effort to keep NorVergence financiallyviable;e. If Popular truly believed that Defendant was responsible to pay Popular forMATRIX™ Hardware regardless of receiving MATRIX™ Services fromNorVergence, then Popular would have no interest in being occupied with trying toraise loans and capital for NorVergence.  The “lessees” would be obligated to payregardless of the breach by NorVergence of the Contracts assigned to Popular.110. The Lessor Steering Committee was represented by the same law firm and lawyer whichrepresented Popular in the filing of the involuntary Chapter 11 proceeding, Peter Deeb.111. As of May 7, 2004, NorVergence owed Sprint alone approximately $7,800,000, and becauseNorVergence had failed to pay delinquent invoices in April, 2004, of approximately$5,000,000, Sprint suspended all new orders.112. Prior to cutting off service, a conference call was scheduled among NorVergence, Sprint andMr. Deeb on behalf of the steering committee and its members.  When Mr. Deeb failed toattend, the call was rescheduled.  When Mr. Deeb failed to attend again, on July 1, 2004,Sprint sent out a notice that it would terminate service effective July 2, 2004.  At the time,Sprint was owed almost $10,000,000.113. On June 30, 2004, Qwest (which was owed approximately $18,000,000 by NorVergence)and its counsel had a conference call with Mr. Deeb as counsel for Lessor SteeringCommittee, during which call the creditors, including Popular, requested that Qwest forebear
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from exercising its contractual right to terminate the NorVergence / Qwest contract inanticipation of NorVergence failing to make two payments which were due that day in theabout of approximately $8,500,000.114. As Andrew H. Sherman, attorney for Qwest testified by affidavit in the NorVergencebankruptcy matter concerning the call:II.  The Rouse By Counsel for the Petitioning Creditors5.  On June 30, 2004, at approximately 3:30 p.m., I conducted a telephone conferencewith Peter Deeb, Esq. (“Deeb”); Daniel Dunn of Wells Fargo; Mike Witt, counsel forWells Fargo; Mike Rizzo from US Bank and various representatives of Qwest. 6. The purpose of the call was to understand the positions of the various parties inlight of the fact that Norvergence was unable to make the two (2) payments whichwere required to be made under the Agreement on June 30,2004 in the amount of $1million and $7.5 million. 7. There was no representative of the Debtor [NorVergence] on the call.8. Mr. Deeb introduced himself as counsel to a “steering committee” of lessors whohad an interest in a stream of income between $200 million and $250 million. 9. Mr. Deeb indicated that he was aware of the $7.5 million payment which was duefrom the Debtor on June 30,2004, and advised me that he wanted to prevent Qwestfrom terminating the Agreement.10. Mr. Deeb said, in sum and substance, that if Qwest terminated the Agreement hisclients would lose their rights to a stream of income of between $200 million and$250 million. He then advised me that he would file an involuntary bankruptcypetition to protect that income stream. He further stated that by operation of theautomatic stay and Section 366 of the Bankruptcy Code, Qwest would be forced tocontinue to provide service to Norvergence to protect the stream of income which heclaimed was due to his clients. Through these statements, it was apparent that thelenders and lessors were trying to force Qwest to provide services to protect theirinterests. 11. Because the payment by Norvergence was in due within hours of the phone call,Mr. Deeb proposed a financial accommodation whereby Qwest would be paid a sumcertain for “going forward services” to maintain the telecommunications serviceswhich were subject to the Agreement. Qwest rejected that proposal, and demandedpayments consistent with those required by the Agreement, i. e., $7,500,000, and
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$1,000,000 per week as a prepayment for ongoing services. 12. Mr. Deeb stated that he did not have the authority or ability to raise those sumsprior to the deadline for payment. Mr. Deeb then proposed a forbearance periodwhereby the parties would hold off exercising their rights for a short period of time.At that point, the call concluded to enable Qwest to consider the request for aforbearance period. 13. Shortly before 5:00 p.m., I called Mr. Deeb to agree to a one (1) day forbearanceperiod, but Mr. Deeb rejected that offer. Mr. Deeb countered by proposing the partiesagree to a forebearance period which would be one (1) hour longer to enable hisclients to file a bankruptcy petition, if they deemed it necessary. At that point the callconcluded to enable me to discuss Mr. Deeb’s counter-offer with Qwest. 14. During the period from approximately 5:00 p.m. to 5:40 p.m., Qwest discussedMr. Deeb’s counter-offer. Mr. Deeb tried to reach me during this period, but I wasstill discussing his counter-offer and the implications thereof with Qwest. 15. At approximately 5:40 p.m., I called Mr. Deeb and advised him that Qwest wouldagree to a one day forbearance, but it could not agree to the staggered approach heproposed. Mr. Deeb rejected Qwest’s offer, and I advised Mr. Deeb that Qwest wouldtake action to protect its rights. 16. What Mr. Deeb failed to tell me was that at the same time that he was negotiatinga forbearance period with Qwest, Mr. Deeb had already caused the filing of aninvoluntary chapter 11 petition against the Debtor. At approximately 5:26 p.m., whileOwest was still considering Mr. Deeb’s counter-offer, Mr. Deeb had an involuntarychapter 11 petition delivered to the United States District Court in Camden, NewJersey, where it was time stamped and deposited in the night box. When I spoke withMr. Deeb at approximately 5:40 p.m., he failed to mention the filing, and in fact,accused me of trying to machinate the same scheme which he himself had alreadyperpetrated. 17. By deliberately delaying Qwest from exercising its remedies under theAgreement, under guise of negotiating a forebearance period, Mr. Deeb was able tofile an involuntary bankruptcy petition to protect the interests of his clients andeffectively stop Qwest from terminating the Agreement. By so doing, Qwest is nowcompelled to provide services at a time when there may be insufficient funds to payfor those services. 18. I have also been informed that within 48 hours of the filing of the involuntarypetition by Mr. Deeb and the Petitioning Creditors, the Debtor itself laid off almostone thousand members of its workforce, apparently impairing the Debtor’s ability tofunction as a going concern. 
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19. Through the scheme engineered by Mr. Deeb and the Petitioning Creditors,Qwest has been forced to continue to provide service and incur debt which may neverbe paid when the Debtor itself lacks the ability to continue as a going concern. 115. Popular and two other leasing company partners of NorVergence filed the involuntaryChapter 11 proceeding to keep the telephone service providers from cutting off service,knowing that if service were cut off, the Contracts, including Yizhac Arvilli’s could becanceled without penalty, and Popular and the other leasing company partners would losetheir rights to a stream of income of between $200 million and $250 million.116. After Popular filed the involuntary Chapter 11 proceeding, the Lessor Steering Committee,through Mr. Deeb, offered to loan NorVergence $2,839,500, from its constituents, including$400,000 from Popular.Unreasonable, Unconscionable and UnenforceableProvisions117. Each Contract, including Yizhac Arvilli’s contains unfair, unreasonable, and unconscionablelanguage that would render it void, including misrepresentations that the “lessee” is waivingall rights and remedies under Article 2A of the Uniform Commercial Code (“UCC Art. 2A”).Such a waiver is unfair, unreasonable, and unconscionable because the Contract is notsubject to the “hell and high water clause” of UCC Art. 2A.  It is neither a finance lease ora lease.  N.J.S.A. § 12A:2A-103(1)(g); § 680.1031(1)(g), FLA. STAT. (2003).118. The NorVergence / Arvilli Contract (Defendant’s Exhibit 1) also contains an unreasonableand unconscionable “floating jurisdictional clause” which purports to state that the agreementis governed by the law of any state in which the assignee’s principal office is located (or NewJersey, where NorVergence was principally located) not where the “lessee” resides.  This isa substantially onerous clause when the “lessee” is not informed to whom the lease may be
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assigned and, therefore, has no knowledge at the time of signing the agreement what law maygovern the enforcement of the agreement or in what distant foreign jurisdiction they may behauled into Court.  The courts of NorVergence’s home state refuse to enforce suchprovisions.  See Copelco Capital, Inc., v. Shapiro, 331 N.J.Super. 1, 750 A.2d 773 (2001).119. Further, the contract sought to be enforced contains conflicting choice of law and choice ofvenue clauses.  The Equipment Rental Agreement (Defendant’s Exhibit 1, pp. 16 and 17)contains a floating jurisdiction clause, while the General Terms and Conditions (whichcontains the super-superiority clause) provides that New Jersey law will be applied.Defendant’s Exhibit 1, p. 4, ¶ 12.120. The NorVergence / Arvilli Contract (Defendant’s Exhibit 1) is not a finance lease underArticle 2A of the Uniform Commercial Code because Yizhac Arvilli is informed, believesand therefore alleges that:a. NorVergence selected and supplied the MATRIX™ Hardware equipment to itsconsumers.b. NorVergence supplied the MATRIX™ Hardware equipment to its consumers fromits existing inventory of such devices and did not acquire devices in connection withthe individual Contracts entered into with the consumers, including Defendant.c. Prior to signing the Contracts, the consumers, including Yizhac Arvilli, did notreceive a copy of the contract by which NorVergence acquired the MATRIX™Hardware equipment that was the subject of the Contract.d. It was not a condition of the effectiveness of the Contracts that the consumers,including Yizhac Arvilli, approve the contracts by which NorVergence acquired theMATRIX™ Hardware or the right to possess and use said devices.
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e. Prior to signing the Contracts, the consumers, including Yizhac Arvilli, did notreceive a statement designating the promises and warranties, and any disclaimers ofwarranties, limitations or modifications of remedies, or liquidated damages, providedto NorVergence by the supplier of the MATRIX™ Hardware as part of the contractby which NorVergence had acquired them.f. Prior to the consumers, including Yizhac Arvilli, signing the Contracts, NorVergencedid not inform the consumers in writing of the identity of the person supplying theMATRIX™ Hardware to NorVergence; did not inform the consumers in writing thatthe consumers are entitled to the promises and warranties provided to NorVergenceby the supplier of the MATRIX™ Hardware in connection with the contract bywhich NorVergence acquired the MATRIX™ Hardware; or that the consumers maycommunicate with the supplier of the MATRIX™ Hardware and receive an accurateand complete record of the goods supplied and a complete statement of the promisesand warranties, including any disclaimers and limitations of them or of remedies.Plaintiff’s Participation as Leasing Partner
121. In many transactions, including that between NorVergence and Yizhac Arvilli, Popularreviewed the credit application, made a credit decision, suspending its own normal creditprocedures, and transferred money to NorVergence.122. Popular holds itself out as having expertise in the field of telecommunication equipmentleasing or equipment leasing in general. Contrary to the standard practice of the trade,however, Popular purchased the Contracts, including that of Yizhac Arvilli, and theMATRIX™ Hardware it covered knowing that the actual cost or replacement value of the
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MATRIX™ Hardware which were being purchased was a very small part of the value of theentire Contract.123. Although Popular denies determining the value of the MATRIX™ Hardware device priorto entering into the Master Program Agreement with NorVergence, and affirmatively assertedthat it did not rely upon the value of the “equipment leased” when making a credit decision,its actions reasonably infer otherwise:a. It caused its staff to prepare, and incurred the fees to record, UCC financingstatements for the MATRIX™ Hardware device installed in the premises of YizhacArvilli; and,b. It required all of the NorVergence customers whose contracts it obtained, includingYizhac Arvilli, to provide insurance against the loss or destruction of the MATRIX™Hardware, insisting that it would force place said insurance if it was not otherwiseprovided by the customer.124. One can not insure an article of personal property without providing the insurer with a valueof the property to be insured, and commits insurance fraud if he overstates the value soinsured, and attempts to collect on the full value so insured under the policy when there isa loss.125. Popular worked in close cooperation with NorVergence to maximize profits for both at theunfair expense of the customers, including Yizhac Arvilli. 126. As a result, many of the Contracts were assigned to and/or purchased by Popular fromNorVergence simultaneously, or very nearly thereto, with the acceptance of the Contracts byNorVergence.127. Many Contracts were actually accepted on behalf of NorVergence by Popular’s
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representatives.128. Many Contracts were assigned to Popular before or at the time they were accepted byNorVergence.129. In addition, certain of the leasing companies extended direct loans to NorVergence inexchange for a collateral assignment of Contracts held and administered by NorVergence.130. Pursuant to the various agreements between NorVergence and Popular, Popular purchasedand/or took an assignment of all of NorVergence’s right, title, and interest in and to theassociated Contracts and the MATRIX™ Hardware associated with each such Contract.131. Popular, in consideration of the assignment or purchase aforesaid, paid to NorVergence anamount equal to the monthly payment divided by the Lease Rate, as stated in the MasterProgram Agreement, representing the entire payment which NorVergence would receive onthe Contract, plus a commission of 1½%, although it was obligated to provide MATRIX™Services for five years.132. In acquiring the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract, Popular intended to step into the shoes ofNorVergence.  (Depo. of Popular Leasing, with Dan Kinealy, Vice President of RiskManagement appearing as Popular Leasing’s designated representative, taken January 19,2005, in State of Florida v. Commerce Commercial Leasing, LLC, et al., p. 110.)133. The existence of Popular and its participation in this scheme wasn’t revealed to thecustomers, including Yizhac Arvilli, until after the Contracts were accepted by the customersand then subsequently sold and/or assigned to Popular.134. Popular’s payment to NorVergence in this fashion enabled and permitted NorVergence tocontinue to carry out its fraudulent scheme and to further its misrepresentations to additionalprospective customers.
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135. As a direct result of NorVergence’s unfair and deceptive practices, and that of its leasingcompany partners, including Popular, Yizhac Arvilli has sustained economic and non-economic damages. Therefore, Yizhac Arvilli seeks compensatory damages for the costsincurred by it as a result of the attempted enforcement of the Contract by Popular.  Further,Yizhac Arvilli seeks an injunction prohibiting Popular from the continued enforcement ofthe Contract and/or a declaratory judgment that the Contract is unenforceable.136. Popular knew or should have known of NorVergence’s deceptive and fraudulent practicesand of NorVergence’s uniform misrepresentations made to all customers, including YizhacArvilli.  A review of NorVergence’s own website discloses some of the uniform, writtenmisrepresentations made to the public in general and Yizhac Arvilli in particular, including:a. “The MATRIX™ CCS, combined with the MATRIX™ Gateway, allows businessesto  acquire  a  state-of-the-art phone  system  enabling unlimited calling nationwide,high-speed Internet access, unlimited cellular connectivity - with no per-minutecharges.”b. “The NorVergence MATRIX™ Phone  System  was engineered and designed basedon the latest Next Generation Networking from the fortune 500 in early 2000.NorVergence was then founded after a year of Research and Development in 2001.”c. “The NorVergence Patent Pending Phone System design, based on its Merged AccessTransport Intelligent Xchange Hardware Access system, is the Long Awaited ‘KillerApplication’ of Voice and Data.”d. “What Does The NorVergence MATRIX™ Systems Offer? Drastic Reductions upto 60% off all calling costs including current Local, Wireless, Long Distance andInternet Access...Revolutionary New Packetized Telephony Circuitry and Next
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Generation Private Data Networking Equipment including: NorVergence Free,Unlimited Calling to Any Phone Number in the USA Inbound and Outbound!NorVergence High-speed Internet Access!!! NO Risk - NO Disruption -CurrentCarriers Remain Resident for Redundancy!”e. “How Does NorVergence Accomplish this? NorVergence Toll Quality ‘Voice asUnlimited Data Phone System’, NorVergence State-of-the-Art compressionfirmware  and  Advanced  Software  Engineering, NorVergence Dynamicallyconverged Voice and Data Internet Access on  One  High  Speed  Circuit,NorVergence  Strategic  Carrier relationships with Major Telcos!”f. “We’ve developed a suite of applications and hardware starting with the MATRIX™CCS, designed to help our customers achieve their business goals and significantlyreduce their bottom line. “g. “All NorVergence products are designed, engineered and manufactured according tothe highest scientific standards set forth by FCC and applicable laboratorymanufacturing regulations.”h. “The MATRIX™ CCS product line helps growing businesses save money across amultitude of business applications.  The CCS provides cost-cutting technology thatenhances business, increases productivity, andirons the bottom line. The MATRIX™CCS, combined with the MATRIX™ Gateway, allows businesses to acquire a state-of-the-art phone system enabling unlimited calling nationwide, high-speed Internetaccess, unlimited cellular connectivity - with no per-minute charges.”i. “INSTALLATION:  Once  installed,  the  MATRIX™  CCS  Solution maintains acontinuous management connection for remote monitoring, provisioning, testing,
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troubleshooting and upgrades as required.”j. “DYNAMIC  ALLOCATION:  NorVergence  has  patent-pending technology thatallows an incredible amount of convergence on T-1 service. NorVergence is able toprovide 32 simultaneous phone calls on a single T-l (compared to the normal limitof 24), and also provides up...speed of Internet access.  MATRIX™ dynamicallocation and ATM/IP compr... algorithms create the most efficient use of T-1 loopsever.”k. “COST-REDUCTION: Our MATRIX™ technology and patent-pending convergencefunctionality creates...opportunity for customers to clear away  antiquated expenses,obsolete  security features  and time-consuming productivity problems.  TheMATRIX™(TM) CCS allows for unlimited 800 calling and cellular usage with noper-minute charges; free, unlimited local and long distance calling, and other neededsolutions such as unlimited audio,  video and Web conferencing, managed LAN,ASIC chip-based managed firewall and disaster recovery/back-up services.”l. “CELLULAR PHONES: With NorVergence cellular, customers are able to talk foras long as they want without watching the clock or counting minutes. There are noroaming costs, per minute charges or hidden fees to worry about. Customers receiveunlimited cellular without restrictions.”m. “VoATM/VoIP : Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) allows a voice call to betransformed into data ...then sent out over the Internet. Voice over AsynchronousTransfer Mode (VoATM) acts on those packets further and makes sure there issufficient bandwith for the calls across the Internet or to a next-generation networkcarrier without an(y loss)of clarity over the public phone network.  With an ATM
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enhancement, companies combine their voice and data applications to travel on asingle network platform.  VoATM is a mature technology at the core of theworldwide telephone network... “n. “Toll Quality Voice: NorVergence guarantees unlimited toll-quality voice on allMATRIX™ (TM) voice... No other competitor can offer the true toll quality thatMATRIX™ TM) CCS convergence...technology provides, including no per-minutecosts.  NorVergence voice and data protocols are not experimental, new, oruntested...NorVergence toll quality  voice  is  possible  because  of  the  stable,reliable, hardened.... Voice over ATM backbone utilized on every call. This is thesame backbone and ...technology inherent in every major telephone network. VoIPis merely a custom..”o. “Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) :1. What is NorVergence Capital and what does it do? NorVergence Capitalensures that each NorVergence customer has access to...complete line of MATRIX™TM) products.   NorVergence Capital provides seamless...financing for allNorVergence products, allowing customers to rent equipment...necessary for theircustomized technology solution.2. Why is my only option to rent equipment??Savvy customers want to avoid large capital outlays for equipment and avoid...”p. “...Choosing EZ SAVE (TM)...We care About Customer Satisfaction and Prove itwith a 30 Day Money Back Guarantee! We are so sure of your satisfaction that weoffer a 30 day complete money back guarantee.  If you are not completely satisfied,we will refund your money, no questions asked. GUARANTEED!”
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q. “Innovation... NorVergence  has  pioneered  the  most  advanced communicationscost cutting technology available.  The MATRIX™ is breakthrough in design...”r. “Drastic Savings in Telecommunications Costs.  Integrated with the MATRIX™Gateway Solution enabling removal of all per minute charges, eliminating 95% ofline charges, and SLASHING Internet and Wireless costs - today!”s. “The integrated MATRIX™ T-l “Voice As Unlimited Data” Gateway removing alltoll charges from your Telecommunications Structures!”t. “NorVergence Equipment Warranty, WARRANTY PERIOD: Except as notedbelow, supplied under Purchaser orders for use in the United States is five (5) years.”u. “The Company’s Managed Care/Total Care philosophy and engineering products(including the MATRIX™ SOHO and MATRIX™ Enterprise CCS) are drasticallyreducing Technology costs for the small to medium sized Enterprise.”The Scheme Comes to an End
137. Ultimately, NorVergence was apparently unable to sell enough Contracts to Popular and theother leasing company partners as was necessary to meet the ever increasing demands forpayment from Qwest, T-Mobile, and Sprint, for the telecommunications charges thesevendors were assessing against NorVergence.138. Charges from these three vendors combined are alleged to approximate $2,000,000 per weekby July 2004. While the scheme continued to generate large sums of cash, NorVergencestopped paying its employees (whose payroll checks bounced and whose benefits plans wentunfunded), and its other trade creditors.139. As a result, for an extended period which ended on June 30, 2004, when an involuntary
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petition under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code was filed against NorVergence,NorVergence continued to sell its services and assign the Contracts in order to obtain cashfrom Popular and/or other leasing company partners who continued to purchase theContracts, but did not pay its bills. That cash has “disappeared.”140. At a hearing held on July 14, 2004, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order converting theNorVergence Case from an involuntary Chapter 11 proceeding to a voluntary Chapter 7liquidation. A trustee was appointed that day. 141. At the same time, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order authorizing Qwest Communicationsto terminate its T1 service to NorVergence’s approximately10,000 customers. 142. At the same time, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order authorizing Sprint and T-Mobileto terminate cellular telephone service to NorVergence’s approximately 10,000 customers.143. NorVergence effectively ceased all operations at or about that time.144. The customers, including Yizhac Arvilli, effectively ceased to receive any services fromNorVergence at or about that time.145. The customers, including Yizhac Arvilli, effectively ceased to receive the benefit of theircontracts with NorVergence at or about that time.146. Unfortunately, many of the the customers, including Yizhac Arvilli, made initial and,thereafter, monthly payments to NorVergence and/or the Plaintiff on the Contracts notrealizing that they had been the victim of a fraud.147. Qwest terminated its T1 service to all NorVergence customers within days of the BankruptcyCourt’s conversion order, thereby disconnecting all long-distance telephone and internetservice to NorVergence’s customers, including Yizhac Arvilli.148. The customers, including Yizhac Arvilli, were forced to try to obtain alternate sources for
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their telecommunication services at substantial cost and expense all of which are claimsagainst the NorVergence Estate.149. Since NorVergence ceased operations, the MATRIX™ Hardware was of no use whatsoeverto the vast majority of NorVergence customers, including Yizhac Arvilli, because the vastmajority of telecommunication carriers require the use of their own equipment (the relativelyminimal cost of which is factored into the total cost of telephone service and internet access),and in any event, no substitute carriers were offering any “comparable” services utilizing theMATRIX™ Hardware.150. Since NorVergence ceased operations, many of the customers, including Yizhac Arvilli,stopped or desired to stop making payments under the Contracts to Popular which wouldreduce Popular’s claims against the NorVergence Estate.151. It is clear that NorVergence was engaged in a fraudulent scheme in concert with, or wellknown by, Popular to generate cash by means of converting its promise to provide reducedrate telecommunication services into Discounted Payments from Popular for the long termrental of a MATRIX™ Hardware device pursuant to the Contracts, and that NorVergencenever intended to nor could it provide the promised telecommunication services.152. As a result, every NorVergence Contract, including Yizhac Arvilli’s, were fraudulentlyinduced by NorVergence, which was, at all times intent upon operating its fraudulentscheme, and that fraud permeates every Contract from inception forward.NorVergence Interest in Contracts Held Unenforceable
153. The Trustee appointed by the bankruptcy court to liquidate NorVergence rejected allexecutory contracts, including the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract.
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154. The Federal Trade Commission sued NorVergence in the United States District Court for theDistrict of New Jersey, seeking a judicial determination that the customer Contracts,including the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract, violated federal law and were unenforceable.155. On June 29, 2005, the court in FTC v. NorVergence, Inc., case number 04-5414 (D.N.J.),entered a final judgment based upon a default, which included the following findings:7. NorVergence’s principal business since at least 2002, and continuing untilshortly before its bankruptcy filing in July 2004, has been resellingtelecommunications services, purchased from common carriers or others,principally to consumers who were small businesses, non-profitorganizations, churches, and municipalities. NorVergence marketed itsservices as integrated, long-term packages, including landline and cellulartelephone service and Internet access. 8. NorVergence promised to provide to consumers heavily discountedtelecommunications services for a long term, typically five years, inexchange for consumers’ payments. Consumers signed a set of applicationsand agreements at the outset with a total price equal to the promised monthlypayments over five years. Most of the total payments were allocated to arental agreement for a “Matrix” or “Matrix Soho” (or similar product), whichwere standard routers or firewalls that cost between $200 and $1,550. Thetotal cost to the customer was $7,000 to $340,000, with an average cost of$29,291. The price of the rental agreement had nothing to do with the cost ofthe Matrix, which itself was an incidental part of the promised services. Therental agreements on their face, however, purported to cover only the Matrixbox. 9. The telecommunication services NorVergence promised to consumers havenot been provided at least since August 2004, and, in some cases, have neverbeen provided. At the same time, various finance companies who tookassignments from NorVergence of the majority of the rental agreements haveinsisted that consumers continue to pay on those agreements.* * *13. The Court now finds that, in connection with the sale and financing oftelecommunications services and related products, defendant NorVergenceviolated Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), by falselyrepresenting, directly or by implication, that: (A) consumers’ payments on NorVergence’s rental agreement and
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associated service agreements would result in consumers receivingpromised discounted telecommunications services for a long term; (B) NorVergence would treat the applications, forms, and rentalagreement consumers signed as a unified agreement under whichNorVergence would provide telecommunications services inexchange for consumers’ payments; and ( C) the equipment listed in NorVergence’s rental agreement would createthe promised substantial savings in consumers’ total cost oftelecommunications services. 14. The Court further finds that, in connection with the sale and financing oftelecommunications services and related products, defendant NorVergenceviolated Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), by (1) representing,directly or by implication, that NorVergence would provide substantiallydiscounted telecommunications services to consumers for a long term; and(2) failing to disclose the following facts that would have been material toconsumers when they contracted with NorVergence: (A) that NorVergence did not have a long- term commitment from anyservice provider for the services it was promising to provide toconsumers; (B) that the equipment covered by the rental agreement would be of littleor no value to the consumer if NorVergence failed to provide thepromised telecommunications services. 15. The Court further finds that, in connection with the sale and financing oftelecommunications services and related products, defendant NorVergence’spractice of including in its rental agreements provisions authorizing it or itsassignees to file lawsuits in specified or unspecified venues other thanconsumers’ locations or the locations where consumers executed thecontracts with NorVergence was likely to cause substantial injury toconsumers that could not have been reasonably avoided and that was notoutweighed by any countervailing benefits to consumers or to competition.The Court therefore finds that this practice was unfair in violation of Section5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 16. The Court further finds that NorVergence provided others with the means andinstrumentalities for the commission of deceptive and unfair acts or practicesin violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), by furnishingthird-party finance companies with rental agreements from consumers thatallowed the finance companies to: 
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(A) Misrepresent that consumers owe money on the rental agreementsregardless of whether NorVergence provided the promisedtelecommunications services; and (B) File collection suits against consumers in distant forums. 17. By its unfair and deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of theFTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), defendant NorVergence caused injury toconsumers in the amount of at least $172,997,758. This is a good faith,conservative estimate by the FTC of consumer injury using the limiteddocumentation and information currently available.  * * *Based upon those findings, the court ordered that:A. Any consumer financing agreement owned or held in whole or part byNorVergence is void and unenforceable by any person or entity. B. Any NorVergence consumer financing agreement transferred or assigned to,or taken by, any third party after those contracts were rejected in theBankruptcy Case pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 365 is void and unenforceable byany person or entity. C. To the extent that NorVergence has a residual, contingent, or similar right toany consumer financing agreements not currently owned or held byNorVergence, those agreements shall be void and unenforceable by anyperson or entity as of the time that NorVergence’s residual, contingent, orsimilar right matures or otherwise becomes effective. 156. Accordingly, the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract was determined by the United StatesDistrict Court for the District of New Jersey to be unenforceable.Criminal Usury
157. Plaintiff should have determined before filing suit that the maximum cost of the MATRIX™Hardware was $1,550.158. By filing suit, and seeking to recover the full monthly payment of $1,139.54 Plaintiff isattempting to recover the $1,550 cost of the MATRIX™ Hardware at an interest rate of
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882%.New Jersey
159. Under New Jersey statutory law, any attempt to collect a debt with interest exceeding 50%is criminal usury.160. Collecting or attempting to collect a debt involving criminal usury is a violation of NewJersey’s Consumer Fraud Act.161. One who successfully defends the collection of a debt which violates New Jersey’sConsumer Fraud Act is entitled to recover a reasonable attorneys’ fee.Florida
162. Under Florida statutory law, any attempt to collect a debt with interest exceeding 25% iscriminal usury, with varying degrees of criminality depending upon how much above 25%.163. One who successfully defends the collection of a debt which violates Florida’s usury statutesis entitled to recover a reasonable attorneys’ fee.Both States
164. Under the law of both states, one can not enforce an illegal contract.165. A contract which requires payment of a usurious rate of interest is illegal.Attorneys’ Fee Claim
166. Yizhac Arvilli has retained the undersigned attorneys to represent it in this action, and isobligated to pay said attorneys a reasonable fee for their services.167. Yizhac Arvilli, as most victims of NorVergence and its leasing company partners, can notafford to defend this suit brought by a company with vastly superior wealth and resources.168. Gossett & Gossett, P.A., whose principals were also victims of the fraud of NorVergence and
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its leasing company partners, has agreed to represent Yizhac Arvilli on a modifiedcontingency contract, accepting as compensation whatever amount this court awards toYizhac Arvilli as reimbursement for its reasonable attorneys’ fees.New Jersey
169. Yizhac Arvilli is entitled to recover its fees and costs for the defense of this matter pursuantto N.J.S.A. § 2A:15-59.1.170. Plaintiff knew, or should have known, that the complaint was without any reasonable basisin law or equity and could not be supported by a good faith argument for an extension,modification or reversal of existing law.  171. In short, the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract was for telephone services, and was able to becanceled without penalty to Yizhac Arvilli should those services not be provided for anaccumulation of 96 hours in any one month.  172. Yizhac Arvilli canceled the contract when telephone services were cut off pursuant to theinvoluntary proceeding against NorVergence filed by Popular and two other leasing companypartners.173. Accordingly, Yizhac Arvilli owed nothing on the contract.174. Plaintiff’s claim that money was justly due and owing from Yizhac Arvilli to Plaintiff isfalse.175. Plaintiff’s claim was not some novel position with a plausible foundation for which a goodfaith argument could be made.   It was an aberrant and legally groundless claim.  Khoudaryv. Salem County Board of Social Services, 260 N.J.Super. 79, 615 A.2d 281 (1992).
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Florida
176. Under Florida statutory law, specifically § 57.105(7), FLA. STAT. (2003) , a contract which10

provides that one party may recover a reasonable attorneys’ fee upon enforcing its obligationsunder the contract may be made reciprocal by the court, awarding attorneys’ fees to the otherparty who was successful in an action relating to the contract.177. The NorVergence / Arvilli Contract provides that NorVergence or its assignee may recoverits fees from Yizhac Arvilli. 178. Therefore, by virtue of the reciprocal provision of the Florida statute, Yizhac Arvilli shouldbe recover its attorneys’ fees from Plaintiff.179. Under Florida statutory law, specifically § 57.105(1), FLA. STAT. (2003), Yizhac Arvillishould recover his attorneys’ fees from Popular because Popular and its attorney knew orshould have known that its claim, when initially presented to the court or at any timebefore trial:  (a) was not supported by the material facts necessary to establish the claimor defense;  or (b) would not be supported by the application of then-existing law tothose material facts, and the claim was not initially presented to the court as a good faithargument for the extension, modification, or reversal of existing law or theestablishment of new law, as it applied to the material facts, with a reasonableexpectation of success.180. While this case was pending, but stayed, on February 18, 2005, Popular through two of
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its attorneys, attended a deposition of Steven Liebrock, who was one of the leadtechnology people employed by NorVergence from its inception.  181. Mr. Liebrock had been hired to “lead and design and build a technology platform anda team, to implement and support it.”  It is Mr. Liebrock who was responsible to makecertain that the telephone and internet services purchased by NorVergence from Qwestcould be supplied to the customers.  182. Mr. Liebrock was asked, in the presence of Popular’s attorneys, what was being sold toNorVergence’s customers.  Specifically:Q. What was NorVergence selling customers?A. Services.Q. And what were those services?A. Voice calling and internet access.183. In spite of having this knowledge—that the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract was acontract for telephone services, for voice calling and internet access, Popular hasattempted to move forward with the prosecution of this suit seeking to collect moneyfrom Yizhac Arvilli for services that are not, and will not, be delivered, and in nouncertain terms, attempting to deceive this court about the nature of the contract it seeksto enforce.184. Under those circumstances, Yizhac Arvilli should recover attorneys’ fees from Popular.United States Supreme Court
185. The courts have inherent authority to award attorneys’ fees against a party which has litigatedin bad faith, abused the litigation process, or violated court orders.186. Plaintiff filing suit under the facts of this case, especially with the cancellation of the
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NorVergence / Arvilli Contract as a result of the bankruptcy petition filed by Plaintiff againstNorVergence, is the epitome of being in bad faith.Affirmative Defenses
187. First Defense: Illegal or unlawful contract not enforceable.  Yizhac Arvilli adopts theallegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 186 as though said allegations were moreparticularly set forth herein.  The contract sought to be enforced was the result of illegal orunlawful activity on the part of NorVergence, which illegal or unlawful activity was knownto Popular at all times material hereto.  Accordingly, the contract can not be enforced.188. Second Defense–First Breach.  Yizhac Arvilli adopts the allegations contained inparagraphs 1 through 186 as though said allegations were more particularly set forth herein.Plaintiff’s assignor first breached the contract sought by Plaintiff to be enforced.Accordingly, Plaintiff can not enforce it.Counterclaim

Defendant, Yizhac Arvilli, by and through its undersigned counsel, files its Counterclaim andin support thereof alleges: Count IViolation of Florida Deceptive and Unfair Trade PracticesAct189. Yizhac Arvilli incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 186 as if same were set forthat length herein.190. This is an action for relief under particular Florida Statutes, collectively referred to asFlorida’s Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act, (“FDUTPA”), contained in §§ 501.201
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et seq., FLA. STAT. (2003).191. Yizhac Arvilli is a “consumer” as defined in § 501.203(7), FLA. STAT. (2003).192. NorVergence and Popular have engaged in trade or commerce in the State of Florida asdefined in § 501.203(8), FLA. STAT. (2003), and are therefore subject to the proscriptions of§§ 501.201 et seq., FLA. STAT. (2003), the FDUTPA.193. The federal administrative agency created to enforce the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15U.S.C. § 53(b), (“FTC Act”) has determined that NorVergence violated said Act by theconduct set forth above, and has sued NorVergence for injunctive and monetary relief inFederal Trade Commission v. NorVergence, 04-5414-CDRD, (D.NJ).194. The district court in that case has entered a default final judgment, finding that NorVergenceviolated the FTC Act is several ways.195. A violation of a consumer protection statute such as the FTC Act is a per se violation of theFDUTPA.196. NorVergence and Popular have violated the FDUTPA by engaging in the above describedpattern and practice of unfair, unconscionable and deceptive acts and practices in theirbusinesses.197. The Contract between NorVergence and Yizhac Arvilli (Defendant’s Exhibit 1), whichincludes as a part thereof the ERA allegedly assigned to Popular, is in violation of theFDUTPA and therefore, unenforceable and void.198. Yizhac Arvilli has suffered an ascertainable loss in its payments of the illegal andfraudulently induced ERA, and in the improper debt or lien of the illegal and fraudulentlyinduced ERA.199. As a result of the violations of the FDUTPA by NorVergence and Popular, Yizhac Arvilli
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has retained the services of the undersigned attorneys, and has agreed to pay said attorneysa reasonable fee for their services.WHEREFORE, Yizhac Arvilli requests that this court grant the following relief:a. Award Yizhac Arvilli money damages against Popular, for violation of the FDUTPA,including prejudgment and post-judgment interest on said sums;b. Enter a permanent injunction enjoining Popular from further violations of theFDUTPA;c. Enter a declaratory judgment that Popular has violated Florida and federal law;d. Grant Yizhac Arvilli leave to amend this complaint in order to seek punitive damagesagainst Popular, together with such other and further relief as this court deems justand proper; and,e. Award Yizhac Arvilli a reasonable attorneys’ fee against Popular.Count IIViolation of New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act200. Yizhac Arvilli incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 186 as if same were set forthat length herein.201. This is an action for relief under particular New Jersey Statutes, collectively referred to asNew Jersey’s Consumer Fraud Act, (“CFA”), contained in N.J.S.A. 56:8-1 et seq.202. Yizhac Arvilli is a “person” as defined in N.J.S.A. 56:8-1(d).203. By their actions alleged above, NorVergence and Popular have violated the New Jersey CFA.204. The federal administrative agency created to enforce the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15U.S.C. § 53(b), (“FTC Act”) has determined that NorVergence violated said Act by theconduct set forth above, and has sued NorVergence for injunctive and monetary relief in
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Federal Trade Commission v. NorVergence, 04-5414-CDRD, (D.NJ).205. The district court in that case has entered a default final judgment, finding that NorVergenceviolated the FTC Act is several ways.206. A violation of a consumer protection statute such as the FTC Act is a per se violation of theNew Jersey CFA.207. The Contract between NorVergence and Yizhac Arvilli, which includes as a part thereof theERA allegedly assigned to Popular, is in violation of the New Jersey CFA and therefore,unenforceable and void.208. The conduct of NorVergence and Popular as set forth above, including without limitation,the continued demand for and/or collection of monthly payments when they knew or shouldhave known that it was participating in and were the means and instrumentality for thecommission of the scheme to represent that services and technology would be provided toYizhac Arvilli even though there was never any intention to provide such services andtechnology over the term of the ERA, which is in violation of the New Jersey ConsumerFraud Law, because this scheme:a. is an unconscionable consumer practice pursuant to N.J.S. § 56:8-2;b. is deceptive pursuant to N.J.S. § 56:8-2;c. is fraudulent pursuant to N.J.S. § 56:8-2;d. is a false pretense pursuant to N.J.S. § 56:8-2;e. constitutes a false promise pursuant to N.J.S. § 56:8-2;f. is a misrepresentation pursuant to N.J.S. § 56:8-2; andg. is a knowing concealment, suppression, or omission of material fact with the intentthat Plaintiffs rely on such concealment, suppression, or omission pursuant to N.J.S.
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§ 56:8-2. 209. Yizhac Arvilli has suffered an ascertainable loss in its payments of the illegal andfraudulently induced ERA, and in the improper debt or lien of the illegal and fraudulentlyinduced ERA.210. As a result of the violations of the New Jersey CFA by NorVergence and Popular, YizhacArvilli has retained the services of the undersigned attorneys, and has agreed to pay saidattorneys a reasonable fee for their services.WHEREFORE, Yizhac Arvilli requests that this court grant the following relief:a. Award Yizhac Arvilli money damages against Popular, for violation of the NewJersey CFA, including prejudgment and post-judgment interest on said sums;b. Enter a permanent injunction enjoining Popular from further violations of the NewJersey CFA;c. Enter a declaratory judgment that Popular has violated New Jersey and federal law;d. Grant Yizhac Arvilli leave to amend this complaint in order to seek punitive damagesagainst Popular, together with such other and further relief as this court deems justand proper; and,e. Award Yizhac Arvilli a reasonable attorneys’ fee against Popular.Count IIIDeclaratory Judgment211. Yizhac Arvilli incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 186 as if same were set forthat length herein.212. This is an action for declaratory relief against Popular. 213. The ERA does not, in actuality, document or evidence the rental or lease of MATRIX™



54
GOSSETT & GOSSETT, P.A. 4700 Sheridan Street, Building I, Hollywood, Florida 33021 • (954) 983-2828  • Fax (954) 983-2850

Hardware.214. There is no connection whatsoever between the actual cost of the MATRIX™ Hardware andthe charge reflected in the ERA.215. In fact, the total amount required to be paid under the ERA exceeds fifty-six times the priceof the associated MATRIX™ Hardware, in other words, the cost of the device is paid in fullby the second out of sixty payments.216. The ERA actually serves as a mechanism whereby NorVergence fraudulently induced YizhacArvilli to finance the cost of telecommunication services that NorVergence had no presentintention of providing, and does not evidence a bona fide rental, lease or sale of equipment.217. The ERA does not evidence a bona fide lease or rental of equipment, but rather, evidencesa contract on prepaid telecommunication services entered by NorVergence for the expresspurpose of obtaining Discounted Payments from their sale to Popular. 218. Popular holds itself out as a lessor or financier of equipment lease transactions in the normalcourse of business.219. Popular knew or should have known that the “leased” MATRIX™ Hardware which was thesubject of the “lease” had a value wholly unrelated to and substantially less than the valueof the stream of rental payments required to be paid by the Yizhac Arvilli under the ERA.220. As NorVergence knew at the time it entered into each transaction that it could not and, infact, had no present intention of fulfilling the terms of the telecommunication serviceagreement and related ERA, NorVergence was engaged in actual fraud when it entered intoeach and every transaction.221. Popular fueled NorVergence’s fraudulent scheme with the up-front payment to NorVergenceof the entirety of NorVergence’s income stream for future telephone services, and aided,
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abetted, and enabled NorVergence in the commission of this fraud, through its purchase ofthe NorVergence / Arvilli Contract, what contains what purports to be the equivalent of aUCC Article 2A finance lease that it knew contained unfair, unconscionable and deceptiveprovisions, so as to cut off the otherwise valid claims and defenses of Yizhac Arvilli and allsimilarly situated NorVergence customers.222. Popular was the means and instrumentality of NorVergence to perpetrate its fraud on thePlaintiffs.WHEREFORE, Yizhac Arvilli respectfully requests that the Court:a. enter judgment in its favor on this Count;b. declare the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract to be void from inception and rescinded;c. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against the Popular damages plus interest from the dateof the first payment to Popular made pursuant to the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract;d. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular the costs of prosecuting this action,including counsel fees;e. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular the costs of defending any actionbrought to enforce the ERA, including counsel fees from Plaintiff; andf. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular such other equitable relief as deemedappropriate by the Court. Count IVDeclaratory Judgment: New Jersey UCC223. Yizhac Arvilli incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 186 as if same were set forthat length herein.224. This is an action for declaratory relief against Popular.
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225. The provision of the MATRIX™ Hardware Device by NorVergence to Yizhac Arvilli doesnot qualify as a “lease” under New Jersey’s enactment of the Uniform Commercial Code(“NJ UCC”).226. The provision of the MATRIX™ Hardware Device by NorVergence to Yizhac Arvilli doesnot qualify as a “finance lease” under NJ UCC.227. The entire ERA is unconscionable under NJ UCC.228. The ERA is void because it is a contract of adhesion that unconscionably attempt to divorcethe duty to provide telecommunication services from the obligation to pay for the ERA.229. Popular is subject to all claims and defenses that Yizhac Arvilli might have had as againstNorVergence.230. The ERA is otherwise void because it is usurious.231. The ERA is otherwise void because it violates the several provisions of NJ UCC. WHEREFORE, Yizhac Arvilli respectfully request that the Court:a. enter judgment in their favor on this Count;b. declare the Contracts to be void from inception and rescinded;c. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular damages plus interest from the date ofthe first payment made pursuant to the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract; d. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular the cost of prosecuting this action,including counsel fees;e. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular the cost of defending any action broughtto enforce the ERA, including counsel fees;f. award Yizhac Arvilli punitive damages against the Popular; andg. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular such other equitable relief as deemed
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appropriate by the Court. Count VBreach of Contract232. Yizhac Arvilli incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 186 as if same were set forthat length herein.233. This is an action for money damages against Popular sounding in breach of contract.234. Popular knowingly and willingly stepped into the shoes of NorVergence as assignee.235. NorVergence and Popular breached the Contract with Yizhac Arvilli.236. Yizhac Arvilli has been damaged as a direct and proximate result of said breach in thefollowing ways, which are not intended to be all inclusive:a. Yizhac Arvilli has paid money for services not rendered;b. Yizhac Arvilli has incurred costs and fees in an effort to obtain contract performance;and,c. Yizhac Arvilli has incurred, and will incur in the future, damages in obtaining fromanother provider the telephone services which were to be provided by NorVergence(and by assignment, Popular) under the Contract.237. Said damages are on-going.WHEREFORE, Yizhac Arvilli respectfully requests that the Court:a. enter judgment in their favor on this Count;b. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular, damages plus interest from the date ofthe first payment made on the NorVergence / Arvilli Contract; c. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular, the cost of prosecuting this action,including counsel fees;
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d. award Yizhac Arvilli money damages against Popular, jointly and severally, for thecost of obtaining the services which were to be performed by NorVergence (and byassignment, Popular) under the Contract; and,e. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular such other equitable relief as deemedappropriate by the Court. Count VIRecission238. Yizhac Arvilli incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 186 as if same were set forthat length herein.239. This is an action for recision of a written contract and other relief.240. By virtue of the actions and inactions described in the foregoing paragraphs of thisComplaint, Popular has been and would continue to be unjustly enriched in an amount equalto the monthly payments already made and to be made as required by the NorVergence /Arvilli Contract because such payments arise from the purported lease of equipment whichdoes not perform the represented function and which Popular knew or should have knownwas fraudulently, knowingly and unjustifiably represented as performing a technologicalservice integral to receiving the services to be provided by NorVergence.241. Popular’s actions in concert with those of NorVergence in inducing Yizhac Arvilli tocontract for and to rent the MATRIX™ Hardware Devices, which Popular knew or shouldhave known were fraudulent, is outrageous and unconscionable conduct.242. Yizhac Arvilli has possession of the MATRIX™ Hardware (IAD) which NorVergenceinstalled or had installed in Yizhac Arvilli’s office, and agrees to return it to NorVergenceor Popular. 
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243. The return of the MATRIX™ Hardware will return the parties to the position they were inbefore the fraud perpetrated by NorVergence in complicity with Popular as alleged above.WHEREFORE, Yizhac Arvilli respectfully requests that the Court: a. enter judgment in its favor on this Count;b. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular, the remedy of rescission of the Contractbetween NorVergence and Yizhac Arvilli as assigned to Popular, and;c. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular, such other equitable relief as deemedappropriate by the Court. Count VIIDebts or Obligations Fraudulently Contracted or IncurredPursuant to N.J.S.A. § 2A:32-1244. Yizhac Arvilli incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 186 as if same were set forthat length herein.245. This is a statutory action under N.J.S.A. § 2A:32-1.246. NorVergence represented to Yizhac Arvilli that it would provide certain services atsubstantial savings over the prices charged by other providers of said services.247. NorVergence further represented to Yizhac Arvilli that in order to obtain the savings sorepresented, Yizhac Arvilli was required to rent a MATRIX™ Hardware Device, whichcontained special technology that made such savings possible.248. NorVergence represented that the MATRIX™ Hardware Devices were of special andsignificant value, when in fact the MATRIX™ Hardware Devices were ordinary routers ofminimal value.249. Such fraudulent representations were made by NorVergence in order to induce Yizhac Arvilli
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to execute the ERA to rent the MATRIX™ Hardware Devices.250. The MATRIX™ Hardware Devices provided by NorVergence as consideration for theexecution of such ERA was fraudulent and inadequate.WHEREFORE, Yizhac Arvilli respectfully request that the Court:a. enter judgment in their favor on this Count;b. declare the ERA rescinded;c. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular damages plus interest from the date ofthe first payment made pursuant to the ERA;d. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular the costs of prosecuting this action,including counsel fees; and,e. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular such other equitable relief as deemedappropriate by the Court.Count VIIIBreach of Implied Warranty of Merchantability251. Yizhac Arvilli incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 186 as if same were set forthat length herein.252. This is an for money damages against Popular, sounding in breach of implied warranty ofmerchantability, and for other relief.253. Popular has knowingly stepped into the shoes of NorVergence as lease assignee and, aspreviously stated herein, it is not a holder-in-due-course on these claims.254. Yizhac Arvilli leased equipment from NorVergence which then allegedly assigned and/orsold its lease to Popular.255. An implied warranty that the goods were merchantable arose by operation of law as part of
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the leasing of the equipment.256. NorVergence and Popular, its lease assignee, breached the implied warranty ofmerchantability in that the equipment was not in merchantable condition when leased oranytime thereafter and not fit for the ordinary purposes for which the equipment was sold.257. Yizhac Arvilli notified NorVergence and Popular of the defective condition of the goodswithin a reasonable time after discovering the breach.258. NorVergence and Popular knew or should have known of the defective condition of thegoods.259. As a direct result of the breach of implied warranty of merchantability, Yizhac Arvilli hassustained economic and non-economic damages.WHEREFORE, Yizhac Arvilli respectfully requests that the Court:a. enter judgment in their favor on this Count;b. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular damages plus interest from the date ofthe first payment made pursuant to the ERA;c. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular the costs of prosecuting this action,including counsel fees; and,d. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular such other equitable relief as deemedappropriate by the Court. Count IXBreach of Implied Warranty of Fitness for a ParticularPurpose260. Yizhac Arvilli incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 186 as if same were set forthat length herein.



62
GOSSETT & GOSSETT, P.A. 4700 Sheridan Street, Building I, Hollywood, Florida 33021 • (954) 983-2828  • Fax (954) 983-2850

261. This is an for money damages against Popular, sounding in breach of implied warranty offitness for a particular purpose and for other relief.262. Popular has knowingly stepped into the shoes of NorVergence as lease assignee and, aspreviously stated herein, it is not a holder-in-due-course on these claims.263. Yizhac Arvilli leased equipment from NorVergence which then assigned and/or sold its leaseto Popular.264. At the time of entering into the Equipment Rental Agreement, NorVergence, the originalowner of the Equipment Rental Agreement, had reason to know that Yizhac Arvilli requiredthe equipment for a particular purpose and that Yizhac Arvilli reasonably relied uponNorVergence’s skill or judgment to select or furnish suitable equipment.265. An implied warranty that the goods were fit for a particular purpose arose by operation of lawas part of the leasing of the equipment.266. The equipment was not fit for the purposes required by Yizhac Arvilli in that the equipmentdid not reduce the cost of local and long distance phone calls and internet access, was unableto access the Internet, unable to provide VoIP, and unable to provide othertelecommunication functions that were unreasonably misrepresented by NorVergence.267. NorVergence and Popular, its lease assignee, breached the implied warranty of fitness for aparticular purpose.268. Yizhac Arvilli notified NorVergence and Popular of the defective condition of the goodswithin a reasonable time after discovering the breach.269. NorVergence and Popular knew or should have known of the defective condition of thegoods.270. As a direct result of the breach of implied warranty of fitness for a particular purpose, Yizhac
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Arvilli has sustained economic and non-economic damages.WHEREFORE, Yizhac Arvilli respectfully requests that the Court:a. enter judgment in their favor on this Count;b. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular damages plus interest from the date ofthe first payment made pursuant to the ERA;c. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular the costs of prosecuting this action,including counsel fees; and,d. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular such other equitable relief as deemedappropriate by the Court. Count XBreach of Express Warranty271. Yizhac Arvilli incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 186 as if same were set forthat length herein.272. This is an for money damages against Popular, sounding in breach of express warranty andfor other relief.273. Popular has knowingly stepped into the shoes of NorVergence as lease assignee and, aspreviously stated herein, it is not a holder-in-due-course on these claims.274. Yizhac Arvilli leased equipment from NorVergence which then assigned and/or sold its leaseto Popular.275. NorVergence and Popular expressly warranted the equipment leased for five years andexpressly warranted through misrepresentations that the equipment reduced the cost of localand long distance phone calls, and Internet access, was able to access the Internet, and toprovide VoIP.
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276. NorVergence and Popular breached this express warranty in that the equipment could not,and did not, reduce the cost of local and long distance phone calls and Internet access, wasunable to access the Internet, and was unable to provide VoIP, amongst other things.277. NorVergence and Popular, its lease assignee, breached the express warranty.278. Yizhac Arvilli notified NorVergence and Popular of the defective condition of the goodswithin a reasonable time after discovering the breach.279. NorVergence and Popular knew or should have known of the defective condition of thegoods.280. As a direct result of the breach of express warranty, Yizhac Arvilli has sustained economicand non-economic damages.WHEREFORE, Yizhac Arvilli respectfully requests that the Court:a. enter judgment in their favor on this Count;b. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular damages plus interest from the date ofthe first payment made pursuant to the ERA;c. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular the costs of prosecuting this action,including counsel fees; and,d. award to Yizhac Arvilli and against Popular such other equitable relief as deemedappropriate by the Court.Demand for Jury Trial
Yizhac Arvilli demands trial by jury of all issues so triable.Certificate of Mailing
I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been mailed by
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United States mail, postage prepaid, this  day of February, 2006, to:  William C.Turner, Esq., of the law firm of Akerman Senterfitt, Attorneys for Plaintiff, P. O. Box 231,Orlando, FL  32802-0231.
Gossett & Gossett, P.A.Attorneys for Defendants4700 Sheridan St., Building IHollywood, FL  33021(954) 983-2828 • (954) 212-0439 Direct Faxrongossett@gossettlaw.comFla. Bar No. 210811
By: Ronald P. GossettFor the FirmRPG/ms
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